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The Otoe County courthouse, designed by architect A. G. Bassett, 
is a two-story brick structure built in 1864-1865. The structure has 
a rubble stone foundation finished with a rough ashlar face^. W. R. 
Craig and F. W. Wood were the builders, with County Commissioner Oliver 

the

The original 1865 structure makes up the center section of the pres­ 
ent building. This structure is a simple two-story rectangle with slight 
projection at the corners. Entry to the building was originally gained 
through a, central three-story tower on the east which was topped with a 
cupola of Hoorish design. The main body of the building featured round 
arched windows at the corners and ends of the building on the first floor 
with, segmentally arched windows along the sides (north and south facades) . 
The second floor design, above a stone string course displays tall, round 
arched windows. These windows feature a stone string course which forms 
the arch, and connects the springing lines of all the window arches around 
the perimeter of the building. A paneled frieze of brick occupies the 
space between this string course and the wood cornice which exhibits brack­ 
ets combined with dentils. ,

When originally constructed, the building housed the jail in the 
basement, county offices on the first floor and the District Courtroom 
on the entire second floor. Two wings were added to the courthouse, one 
ca. 1882, and the other in 1936. These additions are on the east and west 
ends of the 1865 structure, resulting in an H-shaped plan for the building.

The first addition was made at the west end, with minor alterations 
being made in the original structure to accommodate the change. Construc­ 
tion details were continued identical to the original. The main entrance 
at this time remained on the east.

Later, as the need for more space became apparent, an identical 
two-story addition was made to the east end of the building resulting in 
the present form. This addition was made in 19216 at a cost of $60^000, 
and resulted in major changes to the original biiilding. The courtroom 
was moved to the second floor of the new additiqn, while the remainder of 
the original building was converted into office space. The original en­ 
trance tower was removed and considerable alteration was made to the center 
of the north side of the original building to accommodate the new main 
entrance. A secondary entrance on the south and a new stairwell were 
added through the center of the original building. A new cupola, remotely 
resembling the original, was built on the axes of the altered building.



Form No. 1fl-300a 
(fiev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET Description ITEM NUMBER PAGE

The resultant form of the building, as altered, has a classical, 
rather Beaux-Arts character in the symmetry and disposition of the 
design elements. The original modified Italianate character of the 
building is still revealed in the 1865 details which continued to be 
used through all of the alterations. The only variance from this is 
seen in the stone "frantspiece" entrance on the north.
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Otoe County was formed by an act of the Nebraska Territorial Leg­ 
islature in 1855 and Nebraska City was named the county seat. For several 
years the county offices had no permanent location with the first few terms 
of the District Court being held in;.a log cabin while other offices conduct­ 
ed their business in rented rooms above the downtown stores.

A contract for a substantial county building was made August 13, 1864. 
A. G. Bassett, the architect, was paid $150 for his; plans and specifications, 
and build&es W. '.R. Craig and F. W. Wood were hired to start construction im­ 
mediately. Total cost of erection of the original portion was $22,500. The 
Otoe County courthouse is the oldest public building in Nebraska which has 
been in continuous use since its completion.

The original structure of the courthouse exhibited typical features 
of early public architecture in Nebraska. The basic form, a two or three- 
story block with an entrance tower, was used in many communities in Nebraska, 
for public buildings. Among the most notable examples are the old Furnas, 
Harlan and Greeley county courthouses, and McCormick and Ringland Halls on 
the Hastings College Campus in Hastings, Nebraska (See National Register 
nominations, Adams County, Nebraska).

The significance of the building in its present form lies chiefly 
in the use of the early details on the entire structure. A sense of the 
character of the original building is readily at hand through inspection 
of these details. In addition, the conservatism apparent in the duplica­ 
tion of architect Bassett's details in the enlarging of the building is 
noteworthy. Many old Nebraska courthouses were either demolished when 
more space was needed or their integrity was seriously impaired by the 
indiscriminate addition of a modern building to the original structure.
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